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Hatloff: This is an oral hiBtory interview held with General Matthew B. 

aidgway in his home 1n 'ox Chapel, Pittsburgh, on Aprll 18, 1984, at 2:00 

P.K. This interview i8 being taped and a copy of the transcript wlll be 

sent to General &idgway for his review. 

aidlway: I'm delighted to cooperate in any way 1 can with you and 1 

truat that .y me.ory will be sufficiently clear and positive. 

Hatloff: If we aay, we will focus on your role as Chief of Staff of the 

United States Aray and ••• ber of the Joint Chiefs of Staff in this inter-

view. But 1 should first 11ke to direct your attention toward certain 

factors in your background and experience relevant to the history of OSD 

and national security policy in the post-World War II era. First, with 

respect to the .ovement for un1fieatiOD of the services after World War 

II, how did you view the National Security Aet of 1947 a8 it affected 

.illtary organization? Were you consulted on your vie.-? Did you play 

any part in that aoveaent'l 

aidlway: I doubt that I was consulted. 1 probably bad eonveraationa 

with tbe first Secretary of Defenae, Forrestal, whom I adaired a great 

deal. My iapres.ion at the time was that 1t was a great step forward, 

and I looked hopefully to find reaults from it. 

Matloff: With reference to the reorganization act of 1947, did it have 

any i.pact on your role and functions in your .. algoaent8 after World War 

II, for example: on the Military Staff Comaittee of the United Nations 

between 1946 and 1948; as Chairman of the Inter-American Defense Board in 

that saae period; and then, 80mewhat later, a& Caa.ander in Chief of the 
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Caribbean Comaand. 1948-1949? For exaaple, did you have any dealiDSs 

with tbe Secretary of Defense or other top officials in the Office of 

the Secretary of Defense in thoBe capacities? 

aidawaxs Yes. pdudly with Secretary ForreBtal. Ky penonal relations 

with him were 1I08t pleasant. froa my point of view, and I think froa his. 

I had a letter from hi. just before he died expressing our friendship. I 

bad DOthi08 but cooperation at that time from the Office of the Secre tary 

of Defense. both when I was serving a& General Eisenhower's representative 

on the Kil1tary Staff Com.tttee of the United Nations and subsequently 

when I waB Camaander in Chief, Caribbean. The only little point that 

COIle. to .y mind at this time on the Un! ted Nations service is that each 

of the three services had a senior representative there. I had consider-

able arSUMnta with the naval representative. Adairal Kelley Turner, at 

the ttae. He was a four ltar adairal; I was a three star general. I 

raised a question with General Eiaenhower as to whether we were eo-equal 

on this, as service repreaentatives. because both the Bavy and Air Force 

Tanked lie. They were both four-star men. General Eisenhower Aid, ··You're 

completely co-equal.- 1 went into Admiral Turner's office one day and stood 

in front of his desk and said, "Admiral. I'll DO longer tolerate this atti-

tude on your pare, and it's got to acop." His mouth dropped open a little 

bit, but 1 don't recall that be said anything. That passed over the cia •• 

and we had most pleaaant relationa thereafter, but it bad to be clarified 

that be wasn't going to order me around because he was senior in rank. 

Matloff: In what conneetion did you have dealings with Secretary Forrestal 

in tba t capacity? 
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tideY: I doubt if the1 were oa 8\lbstantive matters. They were probably 

just peraoaal. 1 WQuid fTequantly COIle down froa New York, where .y heaci-

quarters office w .. , to check in with General Eisenhower'. staff and occa-

sionally would aeet Forreatal, but 1 had no problema to bring up to him 

at all. They were all handled through Bob Patterson, who was Secretary 

of War at that time. 

Hatloff; There were DO tnstructions coa1uC directly fro. the Secretary 

of Defenle? 

UdpaX; No. they all case throuah chanll8ls. 

Hatloff: Since we've touched on your experience in the United Nationa, 

aad. I know you bave had many deaUngs with the Russiaas in .. arioua capac-

ities, what lapre.aloal did you coae away with from dealing with the 

llusaiana in' the United Nationa in that capacity on the MUitary Staff 

Coaaittee'l 

Udpy: I wrote a memorandum dated February 3,1947. You should have a 

copy of that. After tea months of duty on the Military Staff Committee, 

1 wrote this memorandUll, addressed to the Chief of Staff t and said that I 

was convinced from almost daily contact vith the Russians over that period 

that there was a very clear pattera of their objectives and their approach 

to the attainment of those objectives. The essence of it vas the domlna-

tlon of the world. (That i8 in a much longer memorandum written in August 

1953 aud that I will give you.) That mell.Orancium went through Bisenhower 

to PatteTson, the Army Secretary. Shortly thereafter I WB8 down in 

W •• hingtou at a luncheon at the BlaiT Rouse, where Pre.ident. Truaan _8 
then teaporarily do.1ciled. Dean AchesoD, .0 va a friend of mine of 
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80me years, said, "Hatt. that .ellOrandum of yours made policy." That's 

the reason I would cOIIIJlend it to your attention. It set forth the Russian 

policies at the t1 .. very clearly, aud today, aftar a lapse of all thea. 

years, they have never deviated fro. thoBe policiea. One other thins on 

the Caribbean cOlD&D.d, I had IIOBt happy relation8 with the Navy, and have 

bad throughout IIY whole career. When I wu the Deputy Supreme Allied COlD-

.. nder in Europe just at tbe close of the war, Bill Glassford, a Vice 

Adaira1 of the Navy, wa8 ., naval commander. I had a great problem there. 

The Defenae Department, including the Aray. had laid down theae rules 

that when each individual in auy of the services obtained 80 many points 

over there in Europe t he could set on a boat and come boa.; he could drop 

hi8 too18 and leave. I sald that this applied to all the nuraes in our 

bespitals over there. They all had more than enough points to qualify to 

go h08e. but that would strip our hospitals. They couldn't do that. So 

I went to Glas.ford and told h1. what the situation was and said. "MY old 

friend the Surgeon General of the Anay. Horman Kirk, haa proai.ad to let 

me &aRe replacementB, but they can't be here for two or three months. 

What I'd like to do is let these nurses home by Christ .. s, lf pos8ible, 

and the 001y way I can get them there i. on a Navy ship and I know your 

reculations don't permit that.- He replied, "I'll contact thi8 Carrier 

Captain. Pirie (later to beea.e Admiral), and see if be Is willing to 

take thea aboard and take thell haae frOll Naples." Captain Pirie radioed 

back that be would be glad to do it t and we got all those nurses hom.e in 

time. It was an instance of cooperation between the services in a combat 

area. 
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Matloff: Let's IIlOve now to one of the role. for which you are well known, 

Ca.mander in Chief, Far East Command, and United Nations Command, in 1951-

1952. 1 know you bave been interviewed countless ti ... on this, but I 

would like to look at it from the point of view of OSD interests and 

pollcl.a, national aecurity policies, strategic plannins, and matters of 

that kind. Flrst, the bacqround of the appointment. What were the 

circuaatances of that appolntment--when dld you first learn of it? 

lUdgway: I do not know the background, but tbe actual fact was that 

Secretary of the Army Pace was over there on a visit. Be wanted to see a 

battalion in the attack so I was up with hta. It was in the spring and a 

light snow was falling. While we were up with this battalion, a lie_paper 

reporter ca.e to me, I think fraa The Baltimore Sun. and 8aid, -General, 

1 bear you're to be congratulated." I asked, "For what?" I hadn't the 

faintest idea. Be could tell, I guess, from the expression on my face 

that it vas an honest &nawer and he 88id nothing more. It VBS sose 

little time after that that 1 learned fraa Seeretary Paee that I'd been 

appointed Supre.e Coaaander. I'd had DO knowledae whatever that 1 was 

even under consideration. 1 waa then ca.aandina the Eighth Army and the 

101. Army. 

Hatloff: Were there any In.tructions. wt'itten or oral, given to you at 

that point, and by whoa? 

Ridgway I You have a copy of Truaan'a order to MacArthur, I presume. That 

was a basic thing. It said that this .ess.g8 was to have been delivered 

by Secretary Pace, but there vas a foul up in co-.unicatiOD8 and be didn't 

5 



" f J • 

I • 

. . ' 
, \. Page determined to be Unclassified 

Reviewed Chi.', ROD, WHS 
lAW EO 13526, SeOlion 3.5 
/Jlt" 

MAY 1 3 zgn 
get it in ti_. It said in eaaenee, -Upon receipt of this order. you 

atand relieved and General Matthew B. Ridgway will take over all your 

dutiee and responsibilities." That was my basic lastructioD, and nothing 

followed for some little till. after that. 

Matloff: Did the President or the Secretary of Defense try to orient or 

guide you at all at that point? 

tidpay: No. 

Hatloff: Were you briefed by your predecessor, before he left! 

tideaII Very courteoualYt very calmly, and very pleasantly. I got that 

1I8.8&ge 1D the aftemoOR, and I wa. in Tokyo around 11:00 at Pight or 80, 

as soon a. I could get there. 1 radioed ahead, reque.tins a ... tiug with 

General MacArthur. II. met me and the only other person present in the 

library of the Eabassy there va. Doyle lIickey, hi. Chief of Staff. Be 

bad COIILplete composure. and aaid, -Matt, anything I can do to be1p you, 

I'll be glad to do.- Be showed no rancor at that tille, DO trace of what 

later was taraed by 801lle people to have been insubordination. That was 

all. 

Matloff: What prob1ells did you face when you took over? 1 know that they 

were enormous. What was your initial conception of your role? 

RidI!!Y: It bad been made clear to 118 that my pria.ary responsibility was 

the defense of Japan. The JCS had .. de that very clear. So I i_diately 

.. pped out a plan of reconnaissance, because If the protection of Japan 

was the pr1cary objective, I wanted personally to reconnoiter what the 

staff conddered to be the 1I.Ost likely landing plAces in case of a 
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Russian attack. So I started out and .. de a aeries of reconnaissance 

trip. in my B-17. We flew up around the northern end of Kokkaido, where 

you could just look down on those Habuaal Islands up there, only a quar-

ter of a alle to the neareat one which the ~U8.i.D8 were occupying at 

that ti.e. You could see across the strait to Sakhalin. Then I visited 

the other probable landing places, thos. the staff had worked out as 

heiDi likely. Also, I wanted to try and di.abuse the garrison attitude 

of .ind on the part of staff and all the elements there 1n Japan. They 

were living a nice, quiet, sheltered civilized life with dances and par-

ties, and 80 I took 1t upon occasion to say, -You may be under the bomb 

altes of ~us.ian aircraft here at any t11le. This 18 the war zone and I 

think you ahould keep that in mind, and perhaps your attitude will change.-

Hatloff: Was the defens. of Japan the first priority, even oyer what was 

going on in Korea? 

Uclaway: Absolutely. You would find that in the JCS JIlesaage. 

Matloff: Did your conception of your role and priorities ehanse during 

the reat of your tenure in that poat? 

RiQgway: No, I thought 1 could handle both. The JCS 8en~ .. a JIles.age, 

which, of course, mU8~ have eaaoated from the Office of the Secretary of 

Defense, that said in effect that "while, of course, your primary mi8sion 

1s the defense of Japan, we expect that you can handle that side of your 

duties, and Korea too, for the time being." 

Matloff: Would you describe in brief, just for the record, What the 

situation vaa at the .aaent in Korea! 
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Udpay: It was Bhortly after that when the Chinese started their laat 

two-prong attack in April. The first phase was in Apr!l, and the seeoad 

carried over into May. Van Fleet. meanwhile, had taken M'er the Eighth 

Aray and be met that very well. I wasn't eoneerned about that. I was 

back and forth between Tokyo and Korea frequently. 

Matloff: Let's speak a little about the working relationsbips that you 

had in that position with the Secretary of DefeDse and other top officials 

In OSD. For example, how often did you see them, or did they came to see 

you, while you were in Tokyo? 

Ridsway: Secretary of Defense Marshall came to visit me there in early 

June. He was our house guest in the embassy. I kept this -eyes only" ae8-

sage which said that Seeretary Marshall would leave the United States and 

fly to Tokyo; there waa to be no leakage whatever about this viait until 

his arrival. I thought that that was impossible. that the Secretary of 

Defense couldn't leave the United States without one of the aharp-ainded 

Dewapaper fellows following. But be did and he got away with It. There 

waan't the slightest kaowledge among the presa corps of his arrival. I 

bad hia plane land at Yokosu'ka airfield, at the far end of the field, and 

I hael .Y plaue standll18 by to take hi. to Korea. As 800n as the plane 

laDded, we transferred hia to the other plane and went off. The outalde 

world knew nothing of his arrival until he landed in Korea. That waa my 

only personal contact with the SecTetary of Defens., becau8e shortly after 

that he retired. 

Katloff: Were there any other officials fTem OSD with Whoa you were In 

touch during that period! 
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Ridgway: No. Anua Rose.nberg bad been there before that. She was A88is-

tant Se~retary for Kanpower at that time. 

Matloff: How about your ~latlon.hip8 with the Joint Cbiefs of Staff? 

Were you in frequent ca.aunication with thea? 

Ridpay: They couldn't have been bet ter. I knew thelll. all personally. I 

deplored the death of Forrest Sherman during that period, as 1 raseaber 

it. They were all moat cooperatlve. 

Katloff: Were the instructions coaing to you through the Jolnt Chiefs of 

Staff froID. Washington? 

Rid8!!Y: No, they were coming through Collins, tbe Army Chief of Staff. 

He was the agent for them. That c~1ld channel was chanSed later. 

HaUoff: Did you have any dealings witb the White Bouse when you were in 

that capacity? 

Ridgway: Hot directly. I bad a fine liaison with LTC Belsbl1ne. Be 

was the A~y's 11aison officer witb the White Bouse. I got a pbotosraph 

from Mr. rru.an, in color. inscribed to me and wishing me every .ucoass. 

or soaething llke that. 

Way back When I was a young captain, I served on the staff of 

Major General Frank R. McCoy, who was one of the greatest international-

Ists we've ever had in any of our branches of .illtary service. 1 went 

with hfa When he first went to NicarasUA to supervise the national elec-

tion8 down there in 1927-28. Be told 111.8. among other bite of sage advice. 

"If you're ever sent off on one of these quas1-po11tical/ail1tary.1.810n8. 

be sure you arrange for a safe line of eommunicationa back hoae.- 1 
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always remeabered that. Before I left Wash!naton to tak.e onr the Eighth 

Army, I arranaed for thia line of ca.muuication so I could get theae "8-
aages to Bei.hllne, in addition to my normal coamunlcatlons tbrouah 

Collins, who waa the actins asent for the Joint Chiefa. I had that dual 

line of coaaunicatloua. 

Hatloff: What W88 your perception of the threat when you took over? Did 

you view comaunlam. for example, aa a monolithic bloc? Bow did you view 

the threat that the United States and the allies were facing? 

Rid8WBI: This Is getting into an area where it 18 difficult to say. 

becauae what I might say now .ight DOt accurately represent What 1 actually 

thouaht. As I recall it, I didn't have any concept of monolithic commu-

nis.. My perception was centerad OIl the fact of the capabilities of the 

Soviet Union. and that made very clear what their al •• were. That was 

covered in the 'ebruary 3, 1947, memorandum, when I was with the U.N. 

Hatloff: Did you perceive any differences between the Defense Depart.ent 

and the State Department, or even within Defenae. on the nature of the 

threat and how to Met it? 

aidl!!!: Hot to my knowledae. If there were differences back in Wa.blng-

ton, they were not made manifest to me out thare in Tokyo. I had no idea 

that any such differencee existed. 

Hatloff: How about between the lovern1l8nt of South lCorea and the United 

Statea? 

ll1d8!!Y: We were Yery well aware of that because of Syagman I.bee' 8 con-

t1nua1 urains us on to the !alu, and hi. repeated statements that 1f 

10 
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we didnlt go up there with him, he'd go alone. It was lausbable, because 

be couldn't have gotten anywhere. We had control of all tbs logistic 

support. 

Matloff: Were there any differences in the perception of the threat 

between the United States and its other allies who were in the U.N. CQR-

.and, for ezample, with Britain? 

Ridsway: Yes, you'll find that 10 1IlY 1IlemorandUli. The British, for 

instance, refused to go along with our policy toward Red China. They 

dId DOt withdraw recognition from Red China, and Dulles was pressing them 

not only to withdraw that but also to recognize taiwan, which the British 

refused to do. Dulles pointed that out to me. 1 probably wouldn't bave 

known it except for him. He was over there on a m.ission of the final 

draftiua of the Japaneae peace treaty. 

Matloff: Let'. focus on probl ... with allle8 in the cour8e of carrying 

on the conflict in South Korea. Vbat ware the major problema that you 

encountered in dealing with the allies in your U.N. ca.aaad? 

B.ldpay: I had DOne. I had _st harmonious relations witb an of the six-

teen coabat eleaents there, their commanding officers, and their diplomatic 

repreeentatives in Tokyo. 

Hatloff: No differences of viewst for axaaple, over war alms or strategy? 

Ridgway: No, that would have been beyond my sphere and theirs, but on tactl-

cal ai.eious DO di.agreement--complete cooperation. 

Hatloff: Nothing aD the question of whether the war should be enlarged 

or Hatted? 

11 
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Hatloff: Nothing on the role of J'ormosa, or the use of Chinese aat1onal-

1st troops, which was one of the issues? 

ll1dmy: Are you talking about .e as Amy c01I1IIander, or Supr •• e Coall8D.der'l 

Matloff: I'. focusing on Supreae Ca.aander here in the period of 1951-52. 

KidS_Y: I'a not too clear on that. I know that there were clifferences 

with Great Britain, primarily. I just ran across this story the other 

day. It was sent to lie frOll a P1ttsbur8b source here. The title of this 

article was "The Incredible Story of Michael Straight." Does that naae 

IH&n anything to you! He was all tied up With the Snowden png in England, 

in the period between the two world wars. This group of Cambridge people 

got together and issued a manifesto that, in the event Britain got into 

a war, they would not fight for king and country. The story in this 

thing was that after HacArthur' B spectacular success at Inchon, Attlee. 

who vaa then priae .inister, came over here to Bee Truman, to find out 

what the United States' alm8 were with respect to Itorea. In this article, 

he asked Truman two question.1 a) would he uee the A-b01l.bf and b) would 

he invade China? Again, according to this. arUcle, Truman pve him clear 

categorical answers--MNo· to both questions. The reason that Attlee was 

questionina that waa that he had information that Stalin was urgins Mao 

to invade and Mao was holdIng back because of his fear of the A-boab. 

Aa 80CJD as this :1.nfortlation, which went to Attiee, and hh semor aide 

there, MacLean, who was tbe bead of the American desk 1n the Br1t1.h 

Foreign Ministry and one of the two spies that later defected to RUSSia, 

12 
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MacLean paned it oa. through his secret channels to Stalin. Stalin passed 

it on to Hao, and then Mao invaded. Did you know that story? 

Matloff: No. 

lidsway: I didn't either. MacArthur aacie several charges that these tiro 

British spies, MacLean and Burae8s, were responsible for his troubles 

over there, but I don't know that MacArthur knew that. Certalnly, a8 far 

aa I've read his memoirs, he never alluded to how this thing happened. 

Matloff: I take it, then, that OSD did DOt get into any problems that 

arose with other allies, and that you weren't aware of any sharp differ-

ences? 

BideaI: Ro, but General llarahall was such an astute stateslII8D hillse1f 

that he could have handled that while he was still Secretary of Defense. 

The Secretary of State at that time was Acheson, wasn't bet 

Katloff: Yes. So you weren't beina burdened with this? 

tid8!!Y: No. 

Matloff: Did you play any role in connection with the Japanese peace treaty? 

Were you drawn 1n on those di.cu..ions? 

tidey: No. 

Matloff: Looking back on that Whole ezperience in the war in Korea, 

bow well prepared were Aaerlcan policy and planning for the type of war 

encountered, even before you took over as Supre .. Commander? 

lidgway: We were very poorly prepared at the outaet. before we threw 

combat forces into Korea. 1 alluded earlier to the garrisoD frame of 

aind that permeated our troops in Japan. They were living a life of 

13 
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luxury. They bad stripped their infantry divisions of their tanks and 

araor for Beveral reaeons. One of those wae that the Japanese roads and 

rail bridges wouldn't handle the. and they didn't think they were necea-

.ary. They had cut down the firing batteries of our artIllery from three 

to tva per battalion. They had done all 80rts of thing., but most of all 

they were JUBt living the llfe of Riley there, and 80 they were not pre-

pared physically or spiritually to be thrown into combat. It vas only a 

very few weeks before the attack occurred that General Walker, who com-

manded the Elghth Army In Japan, even started a serious tralning program. 

It was far too late then to have it take effect. But he dld see the 

light and started to get the troops ready for what aigbt co.e. They were 

all far understreugth. I would say that no unit waa committed to combat 

there UDder leas advantageous conditione than those earlier troop Com-

miment.. 

Matlofft How about on a bigher level, did you find that Aaerican policy 

aims were clear? You were having to execute aims. 

Rid8W!Y: 1 thought that the President had made it unmistakably clear 

that his primary concern was not to be responsible for Inltiatlng World 

War III. It was a clear recognition that I got through the message from 

the Joint Chiefs of Staff, not long after 1 arrived in Tokyo--not while 1 

was still with the Eighth Amy. It said that the Soviet diVisions in 

Soviet Maritime Provinces are in an advanced stage of readiness for war 

and could initiate it with lit.tle or DO warning. That was the official 

.es8ale I lot from the Joint Chiefs. So it .a. very much on my .ind. 

14 
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since 1 had already been told that .y primary m1ss10n w.. the defense of 

Japan. 

Matloff: How about American policy a1ms for Korea? Were those clear? 

RidI!8Y: Yes. I had been Deputy Chief of Staff in Washington, following 

this affair twelve hours a day every 8ingle day of the week, before I was 

shot over to Korea. I thouaht that the PreBident had made it uamiatakably 

clear. His 1n.~ruction8 to MacArthur were categoric (and disregarded in 

most casea), that he did not want to start World War III. MacArthur had 

been pressing to attack China, to bring Chinese troops onto the Xorean 

peninsula, and to impose a blockade of the Chinese coast. All of which 

were war measures. 

Katloff: You had DO problem in that regard? You didn't feel that those 

were necessary for carrying out the Ilisaion that you were given? 

ll1dgway: Thia 11 a gray area. Just what I thought at the time I don't 

now know, but the Presidentls object1ves were very clear. I conaulted 

with the Joint Chiefa on this. For instance, MacArthur wanted to attack 

targets across the Yalu. Vandenberg, the Chief of Staff of the Air 

Force, waa very much oppoaed to It. He said, "If we do that DOW, our 

10a8e8 through attrition, plus combat, will aD weaken us that we will 

not be able to respond or build up for two yeara thereafter in case 

801lethina breaks out in Europe.-

Matloff: Looking at it from the military aide, did you feel that American 

.llitary doctrine was adequate for the limited war that was encountered 

in I.orea? 
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ll1dpay: 1 don't think that at that tille American doctdue (you'd bave 

to refer to the bastc field manuals) contemplated limited war. The coo-

cept bad always been all-out war, lIhere everything 11 used in order to 

achieve victory. Of course, we went into the question of whether the 

A-bo.b should be used over there, and I rec01l1llll8llded spinst it. 

!fatloff: At what point did that COIle up? 

tids .. X: I doni t reaeaber. I was Suprelle CCIIIII8uder then. General 

Bradley, the Chairaan of the Joint Chiefa, came over, and 1 said, "Brad, 

1 have DO idea how many of these bombs you have, but we are particularly 

vulnerable here. We have practically our ¥bole artillery ammunition sup­

plies in one very consested area near Pusan and it could be taken out 

with one bOB, if the llusiana have a bo.b. 1 don't know whether they do 

or DDt. But there might be a use against personnel.- We were authorized 

to war la- that, which we did. I had no atomic veapons in the Par last 

theater, and we would have DOt only to get the Prealdent's permiaslon, but 

they would have to be brought 1n fro. somewhere elae. So we tried to f18-

ore out if we 1Il1Sht find a remunerative tarset for an A-bomb, for inst.ance, 

against personnel. and we couldn't. We found out by war-gaains that, by 

the time we could locate a target, it would be so easy to di8perse it. 

before we eould get the President's permis8ion and get the bomb on tarset. 

Hatloff I Was anyone pushing for the use of the A-bomb at the time? 

llldpay: I don't know whether anybody was push lug or not. It vaa prob-

ably just an inquiry. Much later, Radford W88 the one who V88 pushing 

the U8e down in Indochina. 
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Hatloff = What 1eS8ons did you feel the expedence in Korea taught for 

American strategic planning? You have given 8 sood deal of thought to 

this and I know that you bad 8trons feelinSI about fishting in the Asian 

theater and the like. 

Ud8W!Y: 1 felt, along with the overwhelming majority, before the attack 

occurred in June of 1950, that we should not flSht a war on the mainland 

of Asia. that it would be suicidal. I never cbanaed that opinion. When 

Korea caae along, it was little bit different. It was the .. inland of 

Asia, but it was a little sliver off that sreat Asian land tlt88S, and a 

sliver over which we controlled the complete air mastery of the skies and 

the sea. around It. Also, we bad been the godfather of the Republic of 

Korea and we bad a moral responaibility from which we certainly could not 

walk away. We were eommitted to help that little fellow there. I don't 

think the t American doctrine even envisioned a 11.1 ted war, while, after 

the Korean war, I thought that every war should be a limited war, if it 

were possible. 

Katloff: What les80ns did you draw about the future role and conduct of 

li.ited war? Would this be a feasible option for the President? 

Jl1dgway: LlIIited to this extent: there should be a close and continuins 

cooperation between the military and the civilians, between State and 

Defense, in a spirit of frIendly, open-mInded cooperation. listening to 

each other's views. I would illustrate it that the civilian sector, the 

State Department for instance, would. say. "Here's what we're plann1ng to 

do. Now can you support it?" If the answer 18, ·Yes," 01. If not, then, 
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WBow lonl would it take you to ISsemble the meaus so you can 8upport it!" 

That sort of thins_ This haa got to eontrol these thinas in the future. 

So by limited war I ... n that the civilian authoriti •• have got to .ak. a 

clear-cut .ta~nt of What tbe political objectiv •• are and the military 

objeedves have got to flow frOil the political, not vice versa, a8 they 

did in Indoehina_ 

Matloff: Bow about the le880U8 for un1ficaUoQ as a result of the Korean 

War experience? Did you have any feeliBls about the progress of unifica-

tion. or any feeling about what more could or should be done? 

Ridgway: No, 1 had, with that one exception that 1111 mentiou, complete 

cooperation from Air and Navy in the Far Eastern theater. The only thing 

that always caae up vas this questiou of the Air Force. I understood 

their point of view and they understood mine--edamant opposition against 

any parceling out of control over any part of the air forces 1n the thea-

ter. It must be all centralized in the person of the senior Air Force 

c'*IaBnder on the spot. The Marines ware always pressing to get back the 

first Marine air wiug there. in eole support of the Marine divi8ion. I 

said, "Juat look at it from ay point of view, as the Amy cOll1R8nder now. 

You've got about four Ci ... as much support in that firat Marine air wing 

a. I could give anyone division here. Itls got to.go into the central 

air control pool." The Karines bucked that, and the Air 'orce did, too. 

To go back to the European tbeater, 1 had to brins up the .... tbiue-

Noratad V&8 the Air Force cOIImander, when I was Supr8lle Cea_der in 

Europe, aad 1 said, "You've got northern Norway aDd eastern Anatolia, 
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that are 4.000 m11ea apart. I think that those two eOllll8l1ders in the far 

weat and in the far east should have a eertain amount of close support 

aviation wder their direct, instant C!Ontrol at all t11Ha. I'm the 

Supreae Ca.mander, and I can order the detaehaent of thoae fighting 

squadrons at any time. But that fellow bas got to know that he has 

something he ean control himself, if the emergency breaks.- You eouldn't 

budge the Air Poree point of view. It never varied from that. Horstad 

and 1 were good friends and I adaire him sreatly, but he sot hia orders 

frOJl Washington_ This was the doctrine of the Air Foree, and it _s DOt 

going to ebenge it, and 80 far aa I know, it never baa. 

Matloff: What leseons did you draw in dealing with the c:oallUD.ists, par-

tieularly at the time of the truee DeBotiationaT The handlinB of the 

truee table dileUSaioJlB, along with the battlefield and the boae front, 

was apparently a rather elever attempt to join all three--heatlng up the 

battlefield in an effort 80metimes to get .ore pressure at the truee 

table. Did you co .. away with any i.pressioDs about what this meant for 

Ameriean policy and '-erican negotiators, Who aight in the future have to 

deal under similar circuastanees with the eomauniat.? 

ll1dpay: No, I doubt if I was thinking back then what the reaetion would 

be bere at home. I was thinking of my own problems. We didn't pull our 

punches in the mill tary and taet1eal field at all while theae Degotia tions 

weI'. going OD. 

Hat-loff: You were U8ing the battlefield toOt in other words, to get pres-

aure on the truce tabl.? 
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JUdavay: We would go riaht ahead with our tactical planniag. 

Matloff: Lookin, back, how well in your opinion did the American national 

security apparatus operate during the ~orean War from your vantage point 

out 1n the theater? Was it working effectively? 

ll1dray: You're talking about intelligence now? 

Hatloff: Intelligence and also policymak,ing, and the directives that 

were comins to you frOll Washington and the like. Did the Whole apparatus 

seem to be vorkina well, did it mesh? 

1.14&way: I had 00 objection whatever to any instructions I got frOll 

Washington. I felt that the intelligence situation was deplorable. Bedell 

Smith, who was then the head of the CIA, and was a dear friend for many 

years, came over there to see .. and I said to hi_, -I must say that it i. 

very pu£zl1ng that all I can get from the whole intelligence com.aunity t 

aot just combat intelliaeace, but a180 theater and worldwide intelliaeace, 

is one hia so08e asg out in front with 174.000 Chineae. That's all I've 

got. and I don't know whether they're in thare or not. The only way that 

I can find out 1s to launch a careful, well coordinated, probin8 attack 

to find out." 1 thouaht that the total intellisence effort va. very poor. 

Charlie Wl11ouahby, on MacArthur's staff, was a very professlonal intel-

ligence officer and 1 think that the intelligence he had of the Chinese 

order of battle. as it later proved. _8 very accurate. The great fault 

over there wae poor evaluation of the lntelliaence that was obtained. 

They knew the facts, but they were poorly evaluated. I don't know just 

why that was. It was probably in good part because of MacArthur'. 
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personaUty. If he did DOt want to beHeve SOIaething, he wouldn't. 

Hatloff: In your view, what was the 81Rnfflcance of the Korean War for 

subsequent United States defense planning and policy? 

1l.1dgway: I think the ajor lenon learned was that every war 1Iust be, if 

po88ible, a limited war--l1mited in objeetives. to the extent that pol1t1-

cal objectives must dominate the military; and that the politieal objec-

tives _t have a major national C01l8en8u8 or it will not be supported 

by our people under our fora of goveraaant. Tho .. are the major things. 

Matloff: One last question on tbe Korean experience--what do you feel 

were your .. jor achievellents in your role a8 the Supreme ca.mander and 

Comaander in Chief of the Far East Co.mand? 

B.idgway: Accoapliabaent of the abdon aasigned me. The mission 88Bigued 

was very clear: expel the invader, and restore peace to the area--both of 

which we did. 

Matloft: Any major disappoint .. nts or frustration.? 

Ridgway: Yes, a major disappointment was the handling of t.he POW problem. 

That was a touRh one. I think think the underground planning that went 

on in the prison caaps came .. a complete sUrpri8e to all of us; it cer-

tainly did to me. They would ha.e senior officers deliberately taken 

prisoner 80 that they could indoctrinate pow. that didn't have the kDowl-

edge that they had cOIling in from the oute1de, and 8tart these uprisings 

with the seizing of Geueral Dodd and all of that. That was a DeW exper1-

enee to all of us. 
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Metloff: Let's move now to another of your very iaportant roles-as the 

Supreme Commander of Allied Powers Europe. 1952-1953. Do you recall the 

circumstances of your appointment as SAClUR? 

Ridaway: Yes, there I did have advanced knowledge. In fact, I was given 

the high privilege of choice: did I want to stay and retain co.aand in 

the Far East or go to Europe. My decision was to go to Europe. 

Matloff: Were there any instructions, written or oral, given to you by 

anybody at that t1.e &8 to wbat your role would be? 

Ridgway: No, I don't think 80. I didn't get any instructions until I 

got to Washington. 

Matloff: When you got to Washington. did the President and/or the Secre-

tary of Defense try to orient or guide you? 

RidBWay: Yes. the Secretary of Defense was Bob Lovett then, and the Preai-

dent was Truman. Again 1 would like to reiterate that I can't conceive 

that any field commander had finer support from his President than I had 

when I was Supreae Commander in the Far Bast. As a little evidence of 

his consideration for .a. when I got to Washington, en route to Paris, he 

personally took me on a tour of the White House. which had just been 

rehabilitated. He had Bradley with h:lm, too. Then Lovett had a special 

luncheon for me. Those are two indices of .y personal relations With the 

President and the Secretary of Defense. 

Katloff: Do you recall any specific instructions about the post7 

R.1daway: I'm aure that I got none then. 
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Matloff: Were you briefed by your predece.aor. in connection with the SACEUR 

assignment? 

tid8way: Yea, I bad • long meeting with Eisenhower. He left about two clays 

after 1 got there. Ike wal suffering greatly from 8a.e eye trouble he had at 

that time. but he received me 1n a very cordial manner and gave sa as much tiM 

a8 I wanted. He went over the .. in probleas and the per8onal1ties of the 

people about which be wanted to warn as. 

Katloff: What probleas did you face? 

Udsway: The NATO organization was born out of a fear, that coalesced European 

nationa to for. the North Atlantic Treaty Organization. In Eiaenhower's early 

months over there, with his tr ... ndoua reputation and the adairation of the 

world al a military leader, he was able to draw pr01llises of very fine 8upport-

X nuaber of divisions fro. one nation, X nuaber fra. another, to be ready at 

such and sucb a time. By the time I got there this fear of a Russian attack 

(the Korean War had precipitated the fear that it was the opening saabit in 

what would be the atart of World War III, and I f.lt that way .yself when I ... 

Deputy Chief of Staff) had subsided. The.e nations now were finding that the 

things that they bad proa1sed weren't 80 easy. and their parliaments didn't 

want to go along because they were extre.ely costly. So they weren' t meeting 

their obligations and there were no prospects that they would. That was my 

prillBry probl.a. By that. time Pug 1s1l8Y had been appointed Seeretary General 

of NATO and he va. a friendly person with wba. to work. He had a fine military 

backaround and bad been the confidant of Churchill, so I could go to hbl with 

any of my political proble •• aad get an understanding bearing right away. It 
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waa perfectly obvious that our meana were wholly inadequate to meet a 8ud-

den, full-scale attack by the Soviets, which was within their capability, 

thoulh we didn't think a probability. For instance, in the two flanks of 

the area, particularly the Greek flank, froa the Bulgarian border (Bullaria 

waa a so11d RusBian ally) it was only five mUes to .alt vatu. There 

was no po.sible depth that you could defend that, and .y .i •• ion vaa to 

defend the HAlO nations. I Baid, "We'll defead as far forward as we can, 

but 80.e places we can't. There's no possibility to defend the head of 

the Aeaean." We didn't have much depth in Norway, either. with the ltussian8 

right next door. Those were the sort of things that went throulh my mind. 

The next thing was to get a famUiarity with the land that we had to 

defend and tben I started my reconnais.ance from northern Norway all the 

way around to eastern Anatolia. Much of the ground goes right up to the 

frontier. 

Matloff: So the problem seemed to be finding the forces? 

Ridgway: The willingness was there on the part of the military commanders, 

but the political heads had weakened in their resolve to provide the .ean8 

whicb they had alreed to earlier. 

Matloff: How far along did you find the organizational side of NATO, for 

example, the shape and the infrastructure, aDd all the rest of it? 

Rideay: The infrastructure VA very weak., and Gruenther and MDrstad had 

to deal with that later. It waa laaentable, really, but to be expected. 

There VA no parallel in history, I i_aine, for a group of nation. 11ke 

that all of a sudden to bave co.aGn doctrinee. particularly logistical 
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doctrines, and unlfor.lty of atatistical procedures, interchange of 

parts, and all of that. 

Matloff: Bow about your working relationships with the Secretary of 

Defense and othar top officiale in OSD in your capacity a. SACEUR? How 

often for ex&lIp1e, did you lIeet with them, or did they coae over? Did 

you come back to Washington to confer with th8m? 

Rid",aIs No, I dido't COIle hack to Washington at all du:r:1118 my tour over 

there. Nor did Lovett come over. Now, Dullea. the Secretary of State. 

did cOIle ewer. and had a dinner party at the American Embassy-DUlon was 

the Aabaa.ador then--and Dulles outlined the world plans that they had in 

IIl1.nd at this time. They were still trying to clean up the Korean War. 

Dulles at that time was proposing that we would take Halnan Island in the 

south of China and lIIOunt a two-pr01l8ed offenaive againat Red China from 

Halnan and Taiwan, in coablnatlon with operations in Korea. But none of 

that ever happened. 

Hat10ff: Then you didn't have 1IWly dealings with OSD in this capacity? 

Ridgway: No, I didn't. 

Mat10ff: How about your relations with the Joint Chiefs of Staff and 1ts 

Chairman? Was there much communication or vlsitins back and forth? 

RidpaI: Asain. my relations 10 everyone of .y overseas cOlllaands with 

the Joint Chiefa couldn't have been happier fra. lIy point of view. Brad-

ley was the Chairman and all three of them were fine. I didn't have any 

trouble there at all. 
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Katloff: You already mentioned that you did see the Secretary of State. 

How about the White Bouse? Any instructions cOIling froa th_. any 

visits'l 

I.1daway: The Secretary of Defense bad cbauaed while I was still there, 

Bob Lovett had stepped out and Charlie WilBon was Secretary. Wilson was 

aD extre_Iy bard lUlU to deal witb. He came in with complete ignorance 

of the military, and a deep-seated antagonism toward it, which be was DOt 

at all hesitant in expressing before me. For ezample, the AnDY did every-

thing wrong during World War II. He was one of these people who was 

intensely discourteous in his own way. Por instance. I'd bad 30 years of 

service and was Chief of Staff of one of the great services, and I would 

only come to him When I had 80mething of major importanee to which I had 

given a great deal of thought, and bad checked over with Bob Stevens, our 

Secretary, who was bops. Wilson would look out the window and drum his 

fingers on tbe table and pay no attention at all to me. He was impossible 

to work with. 

Matloff: Did you get some of this flavor-the personality and the fee1-

ings toward the ArDy--ln dealing with Wilaon, even when you vere SACEUR? 

llidlway: NOt not much. He ca .. over there while I was still SACEUR and 

I .et hl~-l didn't know I wa. going to be Chief of Staff at that ti~. 

It was II.Ostly a soc.ial thing and I didn It discWla many things with h:la. 

I'. 8ure that I briefed ~ on .y e.timate of the military situation over 

there in the KATO c.OIUI8Ild. 
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Katloff: In deaUnas with the Preddent, how did you let to hi.--throulh 

the national .ecurity ad.tant? What channels were you uaina? 

Ridpav: No, 1 think the cbanaels then were quite different _ In Korea 

Collins was des110ated as the alent for the Joint Chiefa of Staff, so ltd 

deal with hill. By this time that had been chall8ed, and as lona as Bradley 

vas Chairman I never had any trouble at all. be~au.e we thoulht alike on 

everything. 

Katloff: Did you. have any dealings with Congress while you were SACED&? 

Udpay: No. 

MaUoff: I iaaaiDe that you Jlnat have had a l00d deal of contact with 

the NATO Council. 

ll1dpay: Yes, that's the political side of the thing_ My foil there was 

Pus lamay, who was the Secretary General. He was the top political author-

Matloff: Had you 1D.et bi. before t when you were 10 the European theater? 

lU.elpay: No. I baeln't 1D.et hiJl during the war. 

Matloff: Ilqarellns allied proble1D.s in the SACEUB. role. lIbat problems did 

you encounter 1n connection with such thlnas as roles and m1s810n8 of the 

various countries? You had mentioned earlier the fact that the buclset 

question vae coming up. Did you have probl ... with all1e8 alona the 

lines of weaponry. force structure. and buildUp? 

lielpay: Yea, but they would be taken. throuch the Council. These were 

questions for the politi~al aidea of the various lovernaents. not tne 

military. because they had to let the money from the politicians. in. 
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order to acquire the weapons, the lofraatructure. and everything else. 

It was a constant struasle to aet standardization of weapon., infra. truc-

ture, COIa1*)O logistical procedure8, aod thiDg8 of that ldnd. It WAIl an 

enormous task, aDd, of course, I gue •• that it is still going on today. 

Tbey still haven I t standardized thea. 

Hatloffl Do you recall any sharp iS8U.' between the United States and 

the allies on any of the .. question.? 

Udpay: No. 

Matloff: Was there any advice that the Seeretary of Defense mlsbt have 

siven on such isaueB that could have been useful? 

I.1dpaI: No. 

Matloff: Do you recall any policy dec18ioDB that were lUde in NATO dur-

in8 your tenure that were i.portent? Any changes with reference to the 

1I8mberaMp of the alliance, for aa,.ple! 

lid,.a!: No, that did not arise while I waB there. I know that 8hortly 

thereafter the question of the ad.ission of Genany ca .. up. We did have 

one problea; rather, we avoided a problem. You know of the longstanding 

enm1ty between Greece and Turkey. I bad bad both Greek and Turkish troops 

under .y ea.mand in Korea and .y relations with the ca.manding officers 

of tho Be COJabat units had been lIlOst cordial and cooperative and 80 I waB 

given a 1IlOst cordial reception in Turkey. I started out by making .y 

courtesy calls (1) on the Secretaries of Defeo.. of the varioue NATO 

... ber8, and I atarted in the east with Turkey. I wanted to aee the 

terrain which aisht be subject to at tack in the eveot of war, aod the 
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whole ahow there, &0 I went up with the Turldeh Third Amy cOIUIaUder [Lt. 

Gen. Baransel] who co.aanded in the east all the way up to the Russian 

border. We spent a very friendly week. on that reconnaissance, and when I 

sot back, 1n conversat1oDS with these sen10r Turkish officers I bad pro-

posed, after checking with our Amba.sador Georse McKee at Ankara, that I 

take with .e to Athens senior Turkish aray officers and aeet with the 

senior Greek army officers. That was a simple BUS888tion, but a lot of 

talk went into it. It was approved back home 1n Washington, aDd in both 

Ankara and Athens, and 80 we went across the border near Thraee. We met 

with very senior officer counterparts of the Greek Army. We went to a 

little toWD which they said was 8trongly comuunist and told us that we 

really should not go in. But I 8ald that I d1dn't worry about that at all. 

We spent one night in the town of Kavala Dear Philip of Macedon's birthplace, 

and had a delightful evening. Speeches of the most friendly at.osphere 

ensued by both Turks and Greeks and I thought t "This 1s wonderful, to break 

down the bonds of d18truet between these two and .et them to work together.-

The friendly spirit lasted during my eoaaand. but I don't know What happened 

later. They're back now again with great diatrult between them. 

Matloffl They were then fairly new in the alliance--they came in during 

1952. Bad they already coae in when you took over as SACIUR? 

lidgway: Yes. they were already _.bers. 

Hatloff: What did you consider the .. jar threat to NATO to be? Waa 1t 

the threat of possible ground action at the center? 
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lU.d1!!Y1 Yes. I dOD' t think I gave much concern to atOllic varfare at 

that time. By that t1me I had the belt 1nforaaation we bad as to what 

atoale ca pabll1 ties the Sovie t Union bad. I don't think they bad auy-

thins much, .. "be one or two boabe, but that didn't worry us at all. It 

waa a question of a conventioual attack, possibly startiD8 OD the flanks, 

either in Norway which vas 80 vulnerable, or Turkey, 1es •• 0. The Turks 

dido.' t fear the R.uulans at all. They bad foulht thea llAD.y times and the 

aorale of the Turkish army was very high. They didn't fear an attack; 

they thought that they could handle it. I felt that they ought to make a 

fine defense well forward. We had been over the whole terrain. The 

eastern Anatolian Plateau is a pretty tough DUt to crack, 1f you have 

deterained defenders there, •• 80. though they are in the .inority. That 

V .. the uin proble .. : how would we Itop au attack through the center, 

which we knev val very weak? 

Matloff: Did you encounter any dlffereuc:es between the U.S. and other 

allies' perceptions of the Soviet threat? 

Udmy: Yes, there was some difference there. 1be French General Staff 

alway. had independent ideas. Even though they hadn't beateD anybody 

since Napolean's day, they still thought that they were the areatest 

ai1itary leadera. It never case to any real claah. Ju1n waa ay center 

coaa ... nder. the only field marshal in the French amy at that tiae. He 

had been under Claxk in Italy and had done very well. We got alona fine 

tOlether. There wasn't any trouble there. 
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Matloff: Did you find aa,y feeling about the intensity of the threat 

receding the further away you got from the border, the east-west front. 

that the countries that were le.s t.mediately vulnerable were not as 

intensely concerned aa othera' 

ll1dpa,; I expect so. I don't have any concrete evidence that I could 

live you on that. 

Matloff: It bas 80metimes been said that the Greeks and Turks .are 1IOre 

worried about each other than they were about tbe Rua8ians. 

IidaWBI: Tba t 's right. The I talians were de term.ined to defend their 

passes in the north of Italy, and the Borwegians were going to make the 

best defense that they could under extremely difficult circuastances. 

Portugal, of course, waa way off by itself so I gu.s. that it didn't have 

to worry about anything. 

llatloff: Luxembourg couldn't field much force to begin with. and Iceland 

didn't have any. 

lid ... ,; Luu.1Ilbourg had a little contingent there in Korea. 

Katloff: What did you see as the .. jor problems in NATO strategy when 

you took over? Was it a question of _king that defense as far forward 

a8 poslible? 

lidavay: I would say 80. How far forward could you safely go when you 

knew you bad to fight a defenaive battle, initially anyway. Then it 

might be a defense in sucoessive lines of withdrawal, until you got suf-

ficient relnforceaents to pass to the offensive. The question was: would 

and could the U.S. meet ita obligation of X nuaber of divisions? I've 
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forlotteo. bow aaay-l think by H+30 the IfATO commitment was about 30 

divisiona. There was DO prospect of getting them; none. 

Matloff: We aentioned atomic weapons before. What was your attitude 

taward the buildup and use of nuclear weapons in the NATO environaent? 

or the question of nuclear versus conventional forces? 

11ldpay: 1 don't think. that it arose during my ccaaand. We had too few 

there. Tbat all ca_ later, lIuch later. 

Hatloff, We mentioned before the central front. How did you view the 

relative iaport*nce of the central front vis-a-vis the northern and 

aouthern flanks during your tenuret 

ll1daway: France was auential; it waa the keystone of the whole thins. 

We d1dn't have Germany 1n NATO at that tille. So you Ilisht loa. temporar-

11y on both flank., as a utter of fact, but the real key to the thing 

was the central front. 

Hatloff: It seems to me that :In recent year. there has 'been aore worry 

about the southern flank and the more northern flank and somewhat less 

about the central. 

tidswaI: I think that frora what I read the feeling is that the chances 

of World War 111 starting with a Russian attack. through the north German 

plain are remote. They think. that it will start aoaewhere else, and 

nobody knows where. 

Matloff: BOlf about the role and the positlon of Britain in the alliance? 

It's been trying to hold on to its independent deterrence from the veEY 
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be,inning. Do you think that it vaa real1st:1c for Britain to be trying 

to play that role? 

tidgwY: It's bard for 1II.e to look back on that. I don't know just when 

the British lot an atomic capability of their OWD. Do you? 

Matloff: It COIIes later, but the talk frOli the very beSinnill8 1s lIbether 

Britaln .ust hold aD to its prestige, its independence, and what Dot. 

Ridey: That's always been an element in the British planning and think-

ing. 1'. sure it still is today. Certainly it 1s in the French. 

Matloff: You weren't encountering anything llke that? 

I.1d8!!Yz No, I don't tbink we bad any probleu on tbat. 

HaUoff: How about the relationsbip between West GerJUUY and the alliance. 

West Germany wal stl1l not in the alliance when you were SACEDI., but thare 

was already talk about the European Defeuse Caamunity. In 1952 the French 

raised that propOSition to make so-e kind of a relatlonship with West 

Germany in the fora of an overall European army. Did you get dra1fl1 in on 

those discus.ionst 

Il1d8way: No. that came later when I was Chief of Staff, wen the IDdo-

chinese thins caaa up. and the French were bludgeon ina UI to take over 

their t8sponsibility. 

Matloff: 'l'he proposition was raised by the French in 1952. and then they 

aank it in 1954~ You had cOliefrOll. the Korean War aperlenc.e. What 

iapac.t did the Korean War have on NATO? Did it oo.plicate the probleas 

of SACEDI. in dea11ng with the NATO c:ountriea7 Did it have any iapact on 
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buildup? You mentioned the fear that Korea might be the start of World 

War III. Did that have any impact on your role as SACEUi.? 

Ridpay: Indeed 1t did. In the Cougre •• , Bob Taft. the Senator froa 

Ohio, va. dead let against reinforcing Europe, as I r .... ber it. He 

fought it tooth and nail. We were trying to do both at that tf.m.--with 

inadequate forceB--build up NATO and still not neglect our obligations 

there in the Far Bast. We did wind up by bringing in a good sany National 

Guard Division. and only two of the. got to Bee coabat--the 40th and the 

41st. It waB such a miserable performance, really, in the first place, 

because the Congress of the United States had insisted upon tearins down 

tM, ugnif1cent machine at the end of World War II. So, when the crisis 

cae in Korea (which they could see cOlling--they had plenty of intelUgence 

OIl this thing), they were totally \D1prepared. The only thing that they 

could do since there waan't t1me to bring in these reserve units, even if 

it _re politically pos8ible and .. ybe it wasn't at the beginning, was to 

recall the aenior nonca.ais8ioned officers who were in the individual 

reacty reserve in the Army. I think. that the saM thing went for the Navy 

and the Air Force. That was a tough thing because the,e people had 

already bad their combat and it should have devolved upon somebody else. 

But there wasn't any other source, and we had to get replace.8nts there 

very rapidly. That was a sore problem over there in the early stages. 

Matloff: Did you find that the President and the Secretary of Defense 

were followlnl the development of NATO policy, atratesy. and problema 
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Did you Bet any feel for bow avare, interested, and 

Ridpa,: Yes, I'. sure, until Wilson got In. I can't answer for bis 

thinking. Certainly when Lovett was there as Seeretary of DefenBe and 

Acbeson and Marshall in their positiona, yea indeed. 

Matloff: Going back and forward on the perspectives on NATO, I know 

people are goinS to be interested in your views on NATO, a8 they are in 

thos. of every SACEUR who', ever held the position. In the ligbt of your 

experience, how do you Bee the future of the U.S. role in NATO, and U.S. 

relations with Europe? Do you see any changes in roles or functions of 

the United State.? 

B.idm,: I think that it's really a tenuous thiq badcally because it 

depends upon the wlll of politiclans--the political authorities of theae 

various nationB. They make theBe coaa1tll.ent8, but just .. in the United 

States, a new adalni.tratloD c ••• in and then they cbanae th.... Look at 

the chauges DeGaulle ucle. Look at the changes in the political acene 

that Hitterand bas made iu Prance, and that the labor and the conserva-

tive govermaeuts have aade in Britain. Finally, in the laat analy.ia, 

the only thing that binds al11es together i8 fear. If they are Dot 

scared to deatb, there's always a question of Whether they will meet 

their obligations .. de in ti.es when they were afraid. 

Katloffz How about the American side of it? In the original comait.ent 

to NATO by the United States, was there the fealius that this wa. going 

to be a long-tam collllitaentT a permanent alliance? The reason 1 rai.se 
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this 1& that when Acheson yea called to testify in Conare88 he was asked 

a direct que8tion about whether he saw the deployment of AaericaD troops 

in Europe as a long-term co-.1taent. He answered, "No." Later on be 

vaffled. 

R.1daway: When Eiseohower wa. President, be ude a 8tate_nt that 1 

recall very clearly. that our troop. were not there forever. You could 

interpret that in any way. lio. I don't koov. It bad been an 1-.orial 

idaa 10. our 1&1Utuy that no occupation ahould last very long. The 

longer 1t would last, the worse the effecta would be. 

Hatloff: Did you fore •• e then, some day, a pbaaiui down, or would you 

want to speculate about what you think the future would hold? 

R.1dI!!Y; I did, but 1 don't kuow just when, probably 100.1 after retire-

mente I thought that we shouldn.' t be there forever. But I dOD I t know 

that you could put a finger on when you could .afely withdraw them. It's 

been an objective of the Russians for 40 years to get us out of there, so 

anything that's a prime objective of the Soviet Union is certainly not to 

our interest. In Korea, wben the armistice was Signed, the governqents 

of those nations which had contributed military combat contingents all 

signed and sald that, in the eveDt of a renewal of the aggre8sioD, they 

would be prompt to respond. So, .hortly after leaving, I said, "If that 

Ileana 1Ibat it say., now is tha ti .. for us to reduce. Build up this 

South Koraan aray." Van Fleet did that very well there after he took. 

over. Up to that time We couldn' t take troops out of the line to train 

thea, but than we could. I said, "Let the South Koreane shoulder the 
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whole responsibility, .. ybe supporting them with weapons and equlpaent, 

and so fortb." 1 never thought that either one of tbese occupations would 

last anything 11ke .. long aa it haa. 

Katloff: The proposition haa sometimes baen advanced that the European 

countries should take over wore of the role for conVentional defenae and 

perhaps let the United States handle an air role of aoae kiDd. Do you 

have any feeling about this? 

B.1daway: Of course they should, but they are DOt going tOe Ruman 1I8ture 

beina what it Is. if they are getting something for nothing, they are not 

going to give anyth1ns themaelvea. When 1 was Supreme Commander in Tokyo, 

I was prea.ed frequently to keep ursins the Japanese government to increase 

ita .... urea for defense. I had by that ti.e a very close, friendly. open, 

frank relationship with Yoshida. the Prime Hiniater, and 1 said, -Theae 

are my instructiona, Mr. Priae Hinister." Be responded, ~We can't do it 

now. There are too many prior things. Our people would have starved if 

you badntt helped feed the., and there are too lleny other thins_ that 

must be done first.- Article 9 in the peace treaty dented the Japanese 

any military force8 whatever. l'bey've stood on that. Of course. we 

forced upon thea auffrase for women and 80 forth. and now you've got big 

aepante of the Japaneee people who after that traumatic defeat, the only 

defeat in their history. don't go alons with rearaing. 

Matloff: l.et me ask. you about 80a. perennial isaues concerning NA'lO--

fIrst. the relatioD8hip of NATO with the external problea. and areas that 

have begun to apiose on it over the yeara; for exa.aple, problea. in the 
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KiddIe East. One point that bas been advanced frequently is that NATO's 

geographic boundar lea ahould be extended. Another is that there should 

be more consultatioD with no expansion--coDsultetlon with the nations 

involved in NATO wbose interests are involved witb these outSide areaa--

more frequent and effectlve eon.ultatlon, a. indicated in the Barael 

report that ca.e out 1n 1956, after you left. Do you have any feellusa 

on that? 

tidgway: While I bad the HAlO coaaand, the British were already begin-

ning to pre88i Bill SI ... , the Chief of the Iaperial General Staff, who 

came frOll the 'ar East CCliund, was very .uch in favor of NATO takiDg 

cophance of probleaa far outside the NATO area. To what extent that 

vaa endorsed by the British government, 1 don't know, but I re ... ber he 

gave a talk to U8 at NATO at my invitation and stressed that point. My 

feeling was that we bad enough problema of our own. 

Mat1off: You were not in favor of expanding tbe boundaries? 

Ridgway: When Britain wanted me to endorse bringing U.S. troops into 

Greece to take over, I Bald that I would not reco.mend It. 

Kat1of£: Would you lean more toward the consultation idea? 

Ridgway: Yes. This 1s far over the head of any thea ter cOIIIIIl8nder. This 

1s a top governmental problem. 

Matloff: The recom.endatlon for more consultation on problems on the out-

sIde was also advanced by the so-called "three wise men" earlier, and 

then the Hamell report in 1956 plcked up the sau idea. 
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llidaway: Just imagine, if you couldn't set the heads of the nucleus of 

the NATO nations right there in western Europe to agree, how are you 

going to enlarge the alliance worldwide and set agreement? 

Matloff: Do you see any possible changes in the future in alliance 

structure, functions, or strategy? 

tideay: The only thiua that I would hope for 18 that they would con-

tlnue at a more rapid pace in their standardization of everythlng--

weapons, supplies, logistical practicese It 8tegserS the imaginatiou to 

realize that if you're refueling a plane. for in8tanee. there are sixteen 

or leventeen different nozzles on these refilling airports of the NATO 

nations. and all different sizes. 

Matloff: Bow far can or should military intesration go! Bas it reached 

its furthest limite, do you think, or can it go further? 

Ridey: I would say that it would all be a factor of bow deep the fear 

of an attack is. If they really think that the knife i8 at their throat, 

they will do it. I doubt very much if they will otherwise. We don't do 

it ourselves here--Iook at us. 

Metloff: Would you still regard HA'l'O as significant for American national 

security? 

Ilidpa,: Yea. we can I t fight the world alone. If you 80 back in our recent 

military history, only as far back as World War I, some of our leading .i1-

itary authorities thought, "God forbid we have to fight a war -sain with 

allie8, with all the problems." But we cannot do it alone. 1 think that 
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the cement has got to be strong to keep toaether Japan. Canada, and the 

NATO ... bers. or wetre in real trouble. 

Matloff: What do you regard as your ajor achievellents or successe. dur-

111.8 your tenure a. SACEUI.? 

I1dl!!l: I don I t think there va •• uch of an acb1evellellt, because this va when 

tbe fear of Soviet 8gar ••• ton had 80 .ubsided that they vere backtrack1aa 

OD all tbe promi ... they had made to Etsenhower in early 1951. 1 think 

that we got a clearer idea of the nature of the problea, which was largely 

political then; that we bad to get the approval of the political author-

1tie8 of the Various countrle. to do what wa. requIred. 

Hatloff: How about your contributions in organization? It se ... to me 

that you did help organize tbe alliance. 

Ridgway: Yes, I had a big argU1D.ent with the British representative on 

the oraanization in the east flank between Greece and Turkey, and over 

the que.tion of Where the headquarters'of the eastern sea-ent of NATO 

should be. We finally decided on lzmlr. The British wanted It to be in 

Greece. 

Hatloff: Any disappointments or frustratlons that you felt When you left 

that post? 

Ridswa!: No. Done exce.pt the general dbappoint1lleut over the SlOWDe88 of 

providing the _eans which had been promi8ed. 

Matloff: Leaving the SACEUi. period, we can start the Chief of Staff role. 

during the period 1953-1955. Let me ask the perennial question about the 
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background of the appolntment--wbat you rewember about the circumstances. 

how you first learned about it, and who informed you? 

B1dlWay: I think. a8 I told you, that I aot an intimation from General 

Bradley, who was Chairman of the Joint Chiefa. in the fom. of an Inqulry--

"If you bad your preference. which would you rather do. rell8in where you 

are or take over .s Chief of Staff7" My answer was, after a thorough 

analysls. to coae beck as Chief of Staff. Then there vas a lona period 

with no indicatlon of what the decislon would he or when it would be 

aade. So I followed that up with an inquiry sOIle week. afterward to 

General Bradley. and 1 saId that it was aportant that the decision be 

uacle at au early date aad announced, as a lot of thinas binged upon that. 

Shortly after that. it was announced that I would be uoainated a8 Chief of 

Staff, subject to approval by the Congress. 

Katloff: Was there any instruction or luidance by the PreBident or the 

Secretary of Defenae as to what was aKpected? 

IidswaY2 After all the new ... bers vere selected, President Eisenhower 

sot ua tol_ther and told U8 what be wanted us to do. In seoaral. he told 

U8 that he wanted us to take an independent vIew of the whole world 8itua-

tion and then get together, consider theae things, and coae up with soille 

recaamendatlODS. That'. all covered in this very lelllthy ...arandum, 

which I am givilll to you. 

Mat1off: In other word., he va. looking for more than advice on service 

problellB? 

Ilidgway: Vary Iluch 80. Later, he c:alle down shortly after we had taken 

office. which was on August 15--we were all down at Quantico--and gave a 
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talk to the new Chiefs. General Bradley, the former Chairman, was pres-

ent. Eisenhower made a statement that troubled me greatly. Be said, 

"You get together and come up with some agreed positions." I went to my 

dear friend, General Bradley, whom I probably knew better than any other 

officer in the Army, including his own elassmates, and said, "Brad, I'm 

really disturbed about this. These are strong people. Each has hi. own 

ideas. It 18n't going to be poB8ibla, many tlmes, to pt unanillOus agree-

meat. Does thi. mean that the President is ju.t looking for 'yes' aen 

around here?" He didn't think 80. Maybe that _s an UIlDece.ury concern 

on .y part. 

Matloff: Were there no conditions asked of you when you were initially 

gi~en the position? 

Ilidpay: No, none. 

Matloff: It loob. from. the coapoaition of the Joint Chiefa, that be was 

looking for .en who bad bad very broad experience--who had been heads of 

larl. c01I_ds and had global experience. How well did you know President 

Eisenhower at that point? 

RidIW!Y: Not too well; in fact, I didn't know him well at all. We were 

cadets in the same company fOT two years; be waa two years ahead of me. 

I didn' t see anythina of him there in tha t company. Bradley was in the 

a .. e company, as a matter of fact, and I formed a very clo8e friendship 

with Brad in my yearling year, When ba was a first ela8sman, but not with 

Ei.enhower. 

Matloff: How about 1n the European theater in World War II? 
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I.ldpay: 1110, not clo.e at all. He was very clo •• with hi. Chief of 

Staff, Bedell Seith, but in North Africa I saw him once or twice, very 

briefly, and before Normandy I saw him at one or two ooamand conferenceB, 

but that' 8 about all. 

Hatloff: I think that you bad already met Secretary of Defenae WUson as 

SACEUIl head. How about the new Chairaan of the Joint Chiefs, Radford--

bad you. known him before? 

ltidpay: Yes, be was Ccmll8Ilder in Chief Pacific, wen 1 was Supre.. Ccm-

mander, Far East, so he came over there on several Inspection and 11ai80n 

v1.1ts. 

Mat10ff: How about Secretary of the Amy I.obert Stevens? 

I.idl!!Yz I had never known him before, but 1 ca.e to have the high.st 

regard for bi.. He was a man of the highe8t integrity and bigh princi-

ples in every way. Bi. misfortune was that he bad to get down and fight 

agaln8t people 11ke Senator HcCa~thy. 

Matloff: What probl ••• did you face when you took over as Chief of Staff? 

Jl1daway: Most of thelll concerned the era of cutting down, which wa8 the 

decision of the American Congress. Truaan hilllself bad fought it, but he 

cou1dn' t atea the tide. Be soon learned the type of man that be was 

deal ins with in Stalin and the nature of the Soviet ambitions and 

objectives. 

Mat10ff: About the problem8 that you ware faetna as lOon 8S you took 

over as the Chief of Staff. back in 19S3--did you have any discus.lona 

with your predece8sor. General Collilla. about thell? 
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UdI!!Y: I did, 1I8DY. We knew that we were facing a new future, which 

had a totally new element introduced into it--the atomic capability_ So 

the big thing would be to try and look as far ahead a8 poasible and 

tailor the forces to be able to fight successfully on the atomic battle­

field in the future. That was probably the major thing. Then, very 

quickly after that came tbe start of this gradual erOSion, the cutting 

down, and the Army took the brunt of it. AlODg with the theory Which 

was then very prevalent, Wilson was for a bigger bang for the buck, the 

Wle of the atomic weapons. Dulles fell for this notion, which, I think, 

Radford sold hi.. According to that theory, from now on, we will drop 

the atOilic bomb at the time. and places of our own choosing, and that 

will .ettle the whole thing. So one of my major problems during my whole 

tour was to combat this notion. I would never agree to the fact that 

this was "the" principal deterrent. It was ~ deterrent, but not the principal 

factor. In the long run it was going to be the man on the ground who 

survived. But this started the iSBue. 

Matloff: Since we are talking about service problema that came up during 

your tenure. how aerioua a problea was interservice rivalry during that 

period? 

Ridaway: Very serious, because it all revolves around the dollar, and 

that's a big political issue. Early in Eisenhower's administrstion, just 

after we took over, we were told that the total amount for the Defense 

Department would be $33 billion; now it's $300 billion plus. That very 

saa1l ..aunt bad to be proportioned aaoug the three services. So right 
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away you bad to fight for what you believed to be your essential _eds, 

and the Ar.y caae out on the small end all the time-bigger Navy, bigger 

Air Force, and suller Al'IIy. 

Matloff: In his book The Uncertain Trumpet, your aucces80r, General Taylor, 

referred to his period a8 Chief of Staff as an era of "Babylonian captiv-

ity" for the Amy. I wal wondering whether you felt the saDIe way? 

Il1dl!!1: Yes, very much so. 

Katloff: What was your view of the roles and II1ssions of the services, 

and did those views differ froa those of the other chiefs? 

Ridsway: We always bad the feeling that every time we wanted to set a 

little more reconnaissance, puddle jumpers, helicopters, and th1Dg8, the 

Air Force would say, "You're taking over our functions." It was a contin-

ua1 8quabble up until the end of my tour, and, I guess, long after that. 

Nov we' .. sot fairly high performance etrcraft in the Army and a far 

greater number of helicopters and an air as.ault division which 1e 

largely aanaed with those. 

Matloff: Any problem. with the Navy? Adaira1 Carney'. ba1iv1ck? 

I.idgway: No, Carney and 1 vere on very friendly tenas and most of the 

time in agreement, I think. Of course, he always wanted mre money for 

the Ravy, which meant les8 money for the Army. But the only prob1ea I 

kept reiterating to both of them vas that we recognize the needs, that 

we are an island nation, and that the Amy is going to have to fight. 

If it fights ... bope that it won't fight OIl our ahore. but abroad. H 

can't awl. or fly, so we have to have an adequate air and sea lift. Ve 
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sUll have aeitber toelay. The fight baa gone right on and probably always 

will. There isn't enough money to do all these things--that's the whole 

problea. 

Katloff: Where did the Secretary of Defense stand in all these issues? 

Ridsway: He was against the AEmY most of the time. 

Matloff: We talked about the budget. Who was setting the budgetary fig-

urea for the wbole establishment here, and how were those figures arrived 

at? 

lliclgway: 1 imagine that it was the head of the budget office, Joe Dodge. 

I think that the President largely ralied on him for recommendations, 

but, of course, the final decision was up to the President. 

Katloff: What do you think were the dOlltinant influences on both the 

President and Dodge? Were they econoalc considerationa? 

I1daway: I don't know, but the President had to make the final deciaions. 

But, tben. the CODgreBs could either approve or withhold the funds, 1f 

nec ••• ary. 

Matloff: Bow about v.lthln the service-how were the budget figure8 arrived 

at? 

Kidaway: I'll sure that each of the services put in it8 own uti_te of 

what it needed. Then the cost of what they wanted and how much IIlODey 

each could get bad to De arrived at. Those were decision. for the Seere-

tary of DefeDse and the President. 

Matloff, Did the JCS aa a corporate body play aDY role at all in budae-

tary fo~ulation? 
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B,1dI!!Y: I d.on't thiuk 80. I wouldn't .. y Done. The Joint eMefa would 

have to recommend what the makeup of the several services should be. 

That was senerally a ooaproalse because you couldn't reconcile it with 

your honest conviction. of what was actually needed. What each of us 

a.ked for far axc.eded any probability of getting the ~Dey involved. 

Matloff: I gather from what I've read that you had stronB vievs on the 

aeed. for balanced forces. Do you want to de,cribe a l1ttle of what you 

bad in mind for the Army and for the nation at larse, If it extended to 

that deBree? 

1l1d.&!!I: I don't kDow if balanced force. would mean the .... thins to me 

today. In a combat theater you'd want a proper proportion of air, sea, 

and ground forces. 
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